

**AIDS PHARMACEUTICAL ASSISTANCE
(LOCAL PHARMACEUTICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM – LPAP)**

(Year 3~~4~~5 Service Priority: #8~~5~~ for Part A)

- A. AIDS Pharmaceutical Assistance (Local Pharmaceutical Assistance Program – LPAP)** is a core medical service. The purpose of the LPAP component (i.e., prescription drug services) of the AIDS Pharmaceutical Assistance service category, in accordance with federal Ryan White Program guidelines, is “to provide therapeutics to treat HIV/AIDS or to prevent the serious deterioration of health arising from HIV/AIDS in eligible individuals, including measures for the prevention and treatment of opportunistic infections.” LPAPs must be compliant with the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program’s requirement of payer of last resort.

This service includes the provision of medications and related supplies prescribed or ordered by a licensed medical provider (MD, DO, APRN, PAs) ~~to prolong life, improve health, or prevent deterioration of health~~ for people with HIV who are ineligible for Medicaid, Medicare Part D, ADAP, or other public sector funding, or have private insurance with limited or no prescription drug coverage. Supplies are limited to consumable medical supplies necessary for the administration of prescribed medications.

IMPORTANT NOTES: Services are restricted to outpatient services only. Inpatient, emergency room, and urgent care center prescription drug services are not covered. Vaccines provided during a medical office visit are no longer found in the local Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary but may be available under Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services. Prescription drug copayment assistance is not provided for clients with prescription drug discount cards. LPAP services may not be provided on an emergency basis (defined as a single occurrence of short duration). See the General Revenue Short-term Medication Assistance protocol in Section XII of this FY 2024 Ryan White Program Service Delivery Manual for information on how to access to medications on a short-term, emergency basis.

- 1. Medications Provided:** This service pays for injectable and non-injectable prescription drugs, pediatric formulations, appetite stimulants, and/or related consumable medical supplies for the administration of medications. Medications are provided in accordance with the most recent release of the local Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary, with the Ryan White Part A/MAI Program as the payer of last resort. The local Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary is subject to change due to guidance from HRSA, the federal granting agency, and/or the Miami-Dade HIV/AIDS Partnership’s Medical Care Subcommittee.

2. Client Education and Adherence:

- Providers are expected to educate clients on the importance of adhering to their medication regimen with the objectives of reducing the risk of developing and spreading a resistant virus, and to ensure a healthy life for the client.
- Providers are expected to offer basic education to clients on various treatment options, ~~including information about state-of-the-art combination drug therapies.~~
- Clients must be encouraged to take medications as prescribed, as well as to follow the recommendations made by Licensed mMedical providers, nutritionists, and Pharmacists regarding medication management.

3. Coordination of Care:

- Providers must maintain appropriate contact with other caregivers (i.e., the client's mMedical case manager, Licensed mMedical provider, nutritionist, counselor, etc.) and with the client in order to monitor that the client adheres to their medication regimen; and ensures that the client receives coordinated, interdisciplinary support for adherence, and assistance in overcoming barriers to meeting treatment objectives.
- Providers will be expected to immediately inform mMedical case managers when clients are not adhering to their medication regimen (i.e., the client misses prescription refills, misses licensed medical provider visits, or is having other difficulties with treatment adherence).
- Providers are expected to ensure immediate follow-up with clients who miss their prescription refills, licensed medical provider visits, and/or who experience difficulties with treatment adherence.

B. Program Operation Requirements:

- Providers are encouraged to provide county-wide delivery. However, Ryan White Program funds may not be used to pay for the delivery of medications or consumable medical supplies unless one of the following conditions is met by the client, is documented by the client's Licensed Medical Provider, and said documentation is maintained in the client's chart:

- 1) The client is permanently disabled (condition is documented once);
- 2) The client has been examined by a ~~L~~icensed ~~M~~medical ~~P~~provider and found to be suffering from an illness that significantly limits the client's capacity to travel [condition is valid for the period indicated by the ~~L~~icensed ~~M~~medical ~~P~~rovider-provider or for sixty (60) calendar days from the date of certification].

IMPORTANT NOTE: Medical Case Managers requesting home delivery must have documentation on file that meets one of the conditions listed above.

- Providers must specify provisions for home delivery of medications and related supplies and equipment for eligible Ryan White Program clients who require this service.
- Providers of this service are expected to be Covered Entities authorized to dispense PHS 340B-priced medications either directly, through an allowable subcontract arrangement, or via another federally acceptable affiliation.
 - Clients needing this service may only go to, or be referred to, the pharmacy in which their ~~HIV/Primary Care Provider~~licensed ~~medical provider or prescribing practitioner~~ is located or affiliated with (e.g., by subcontract, etc.). This is due to PHS 340B Pharmacy drug pricing limitations, and HRSA's requirements that the Ryan White Part A/MAI Program use PHS 340B drug pricing wherever possible.
 - If the provider is a PHS 340B covered entity and the client is enrolled in the Florida ADAP Program, that client is eligible for PHS 340B pricing for prescriptions not covered by the ADAP formulary regardless of whether or not the client is the agency's own client.
- Pharmacy providers are directed to use the most cost-effective product, either brand name or generic name, whichever is less expensive at the time of dispensing. An annual, signed assurance is required from the service provider regarding this directive.
- The LPAP-funded service provider must be linked to an existing ~~m~~Medical ~~c~~ase ~~M~~anagement system through agreements with multiple Medical Case Management providers. Providers are contractually required to enter into formal referral agreements that detail responsibilities of both parties and penalties for not complying with the referral agreement.

A Ryan White Program In Network Referral for LPAP Services is not required. However, to access LPAP services, the client must be open at the LPAP-funded agency and must have their Client Service Category Profile in the Provide® Enterprise Miami data management system open to Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services at the same agency. This is due to 340B covered entity drug pricing requirements.

Ryan White Program-funded LPAP services have a maximum of one year from the date on the prescription.

C. Rules for Reimbursement: Dependent on the type of pharmacy provider, please adhere to the following reimbursement structures.

- Where applicable, providers will be reimbursed for program-allowable prescription drugs based on the PHS 340B price of the prescription provided to the Ryan White client, plus a flat rate dispensing fee. Total costs should include the cost of home delivery, as allowable, and other direct costs associated with the provision of this service. Providers must stipulate the flat rate dispensing fee that will be added to the PHS price. (For example, if the PHS price of a prescription is \$185.00, and the provider's proposed flat rate dispensing fee is \$11.00, then the total reimbursement amount is equal to \$196.00.) An estimate of the number of clients (unduplicated caseload) expected to receive these services must be included on the corresponding budget narrative.
- Reimbursement for consumable medical supplies is limited and must be related to administering medications (e.g., for insulin injection in diabetics, etc.). Approved consumable medical supplies are found in Attachment B of the most current, local Ryan White Program Prescription Drug Formulary.
- No multiplier will be applied to Medicare or Medicaid rates for consumable medical supplies.

D. Additional Rules for Reporting and Documentation: Providers must document client eligibility for this service and report monthly activity (i.e., through reimbursement requests) in terms of the individual drugs dispensed (utilizing a locally-defined drug coding system to be provided by the County), the number of prescriptions filled for each drug, the number of pills or units dispensed, the amount of Ryan White Program funds spent dispensing each drug, and the unduplicated number of clients that received each drug limited to those medications listed in the

most recent release of the local Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary.

Provider monthly reports (i.e., reimbursement requests) for consumable medical supplies must include the number of clients served, medical supply distributions with HCPCS codes as appropriate per client, and dollar amounts per client.

E. Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary: Ryan White Program funds may only be used to purchase or provide vitamins, appetite stimulants, and/or other prescription medications to program clients as follows:

- Prescribed medications that are included in the most recent release of the Ryan White Part A Program Prescription Drug Formulary. This formulary is subject to periodic revision; and
- Medications, appetite stimulants, or vitamins that have been prescribed by the client's ~~L~~icensed ~~m~~Medical ~~P~~rovider. **IMPORTANT NOTE:** Prescriptions for vitamins may be written for a 90-day (calendar days) supply.

F. Letter of Medical Necessity: Continuous Glucose Monitoring (CGM) Devices require a completed Ryan White Letter of Medical Necessity (LOMN) (See Section V of this FY 2024 Service Delivery Manual for copies of the Letters of Medical Necessity, as may be amended):

ADDITIONAL IMPORTANT NOTES:

- **Medical Case Managers must work with clients to explore in a diligent and timely manner all health insurance options and evaluate the client's best option to ensure that health insurance premiums, deductibles and prescription drug copayments are reasonable and covered by the appropriate payer source. For Medicare Part D recipients, any client whose gross household income falls below 150% of the 2024 Federal Poverty Level (FPL) must be enrolled in the Low-Income Subsidy (LIS) Program. In addition, for Medicare Part D recipients, any client whose gross household income falls between 135% and 150% of the FPL must be enrolled in ADAP for assistance with prescription drug expenses. For Medicare Part D recipients, any client whose gross household income falls above 150% of the FPL or does not qualify for the LIS and who falls into the "donut hole," must be referred to the ADAP Program.**
- **AS OMB RECEIVES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FROM FEDERAL FUNDERS AND/OR STATE LEGISLATIVE BODIES REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PATIENT PROTECTION AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT (ACA), HEALTH EXCHANGES, OR ANY SUBSEQUENT HEALTH CARE LAW, THIS MANUAL MAY BE**

REVISED.

DRAFT

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

(Year 345 Service Priorities: #37 for Part A and #63 for MAI)

Mental Health Services are a set of core medical services that consist of counseling and treatment for diagnosed behavioral health disorders. These services are designed to reduce harmful behaviors and episodes of instability and improve mental status and client health outcomes. These Mental Health Services include the provision of outpatient psychological and psychiatric screening, assessment, diagnosis, treatment, and counseling services offered to people with HIV. Services are based on an individualized treatment plan and are conducted in group and individual sessions. All services are provided by mental health professionals licensed or otherwise authorized within the State of Florida to render such services. All clients receiving this service must have at least one mental or behavioral health diagnosis specified in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition, Text Revision (DSM-5-TR) or International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision, Clinical Modification (ICD-10-CM; Codes F01-F99, excluding “Mental and behavioral disorders due to psychoactive substance use” – codes F10-F19).

Mental Health Services require an individualized treatment plan, as noted above. Treatment plans incorporate the findings of assessment and diagnostic tools and specify the goals and objectives to be achieved during the treatment episode. The treatment plan also specifies the recommended clinical interventions and frequency with which these interventions shall be delivered. Mental health providers may use this service category to conduct the assessment and diagnostic steps for the development of a treatment plan. If ongoing mental health services are being provided to a client, it is expected that the client receives a mental health treatment plan at least every six months.

Psychiatric treatment with medication management and evaluation should be billed and recorded under Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services. Additional mental health services may be billed under Outpatient/Ambulatory Health Services when provided by a licensed psychiatrist or other doctor, clinical psychologist, clinical social worker, clinical nurse specialist, nurse practitioner or physician assistant/associate.

Mental Health Services are allowable only for program-eligible clients. This service is not available to family members without HIV. Ryan White Program funds may **not** be used for bereavement support for uninfected family members or friends.

Mental Health Services reimbursed under Part A or MAI of the Ryan White Program are limited to conditions impacting the treatment of the client’s underlying HIV disease (e.g., assessing, diagnosing, and treating a mental health condition that hinders HIV treatment adherence) and treated within the context of the client’s HIV or AIDS diagnosis. This service is intended to address issues that impact a person’s ability to remain engaged in HIV care, strengthen coping skills and self-care, and promote engagement in ongoing medical care and treatment. It is important for the Level I or Level II mental health

professional to regularly gauge and document the client's progress and determine if the client is still in need of the service.

- **Mental Health Services (Level I):** This level includes *intensive* mental health therapy and counseling (individual, family, and group) provided solely by *state-licensed mental health professionals*. Direct service providers would possess **a Doctorate degree in psychology or counseling or related field (PhD, EdD, PsyD), and must be licensed by the State of Florida** as a ~~L~~icensed ~~c~~linical ~~p~~Psychologist, LCSW, LMHC, or LMFT to provide such services.
- **Mental Health Services (Level II):** This level includes *intensive* mental health therapy and counseling (individual, family, and group) provided solely by *state-licensed mental health professionals*. Direct service providers would possess **a Master's degree in psychology, psychotherapy or counseling or related field (MS, MA, MSW, or M.Ed.), and must be licensed by the State of Florida** as a LCSW, LMHC or LMFT to provide such services. **Direct service providers may also be:** 1) Florida registered interns as defined by Florida Statute (F.S.) 491.0045 (Clinical Social Work Intern, Mental Health Counselor Intern, or Marriage and Family Therapy Intern), or 2) a Psychology Intern, Postdoctoral Resident, or Fellow satisfying Rule 64B19-11.005 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). Such interns must provide services under the supervision of a LCSW, LMHC, LMFT or ~~L~~icensed ~~p~~Psychologist who is licensed in the State of Florida.

Mental Health Service Components:

Level I counseling services provided to Ryan White Program clients include psychosocial assessment and evaluation, testing, diagnosis, treatment planning with written goals, crisis counseling, periodic re-assessments, re-evaluations of plans and goals, documenting progress, and referrals to psychiatric and/or other services as appropriate. Issues of relevance to program-eligible people with HIV (clients) such as risk behavior, substance abuse, adherence to medical treatments, depression, panic, anxiety, maladaptive coping, safer sex, and suicidal ideation will be addressed. Mental health professionals are encouraged to practice and introduce motivational interviewing and harm reduction strategies to their clients, if deemed clinically appropriate. Services at this level are provided for clients experiencing acute, sporadic mental health problems and are generally not long term [individual counseling shall not exceed 32 encounters per Fiscal Year and five (5) units (maximum of 2 ½ hours) per session; 1 encounter = 1 day of service].

Level II counseling services provided to Ryan White Program clients include crisis counseling, re-evaluations of plans and goals, documenting progress, and referrals to psychiatric and/or other services as appropriate. Issues of relevance to program-eligible people with HIV (clients) such as risk behavior, substance abuse, adherence to medical treatments, depression, panic, anxiety, maladaptive coping, safer sex, and suicidal ideation will be addressed. Mental health professionals are encouraged to practice and introduce motivational interviewing and harm reduction strategies to their clients, if deemed

clinically appropriate. Services at this level are provided for clients experiencing acute, sporadic mental health problems and are generally not long term [individual counseling shall not exceed 32 encounters per Fiscal Year and five (5) units (maximum of 2 ½ hours) per session; 1 encounter = 1 day of service].

Group Counseling (Levels I and II) refers to a group of individuals [minimum of three (3) Ryan White Program clients, maximum of fifteen (15) total clients] with similar problems meeting under the expert guidance of a trained mental health professional. Members of the group will be selected by the mental health professional in order to maximize the interaction, learning, and benefits derived from a group dynamic. Group counseling provides therapy in a social context, reduces the feeling of isolation many clients experience, provides an opportunity for clients to share methods of problem-solving, and allows the therapist an opportunity to observe how an individual interacts with others.

- A. Program Operation Requirements:** Staff must demonstrate knowledge of HIV disease, its psychosocial dynamics, and implications, including cognitive impairment, and generally accepted treatment modalities and practices. Services may be delivered to non-HIV+ family members (as defined by the client) only if the program-eligible client is also being served. Providers will comply with super-confidentiality laws as per State of Florida's guidelines. The ratio of group counseling participants to counselors may not be lower than 3:1 and may not be higher than 15:1, as described above. One visit is equal to one half-hour counseling session.

Clients who are newly diagnosed with HIV or have returned to care should be offered the opportunity to speak with a mental health provider as a routine component of the services available through the local Ryan White Part A Program. An initial mental health visit could be used to identify, assess, or verify mental health conditions that may affect a client's treatment adherence. Subsequent or on-going Mental Health Services under the Ryan White Part A Program require a mental health diagnosis documented in the client's chart. To facilitate this process for newly diagnosed or returned to care clients who are receiving TTRA mental health services are limited to one encounter (all mental health services provided on one day) within 30 days of starting the TTRA protocol, while program eligibility is being determined. For clients following the Newly Identified Client (NIC) protocol, Mental Health Services may be provided with these same limitations.

Tele-mental health services are also available. Please see Section XVI, Additional Policies and Procedures, of this Service Delivery Manual for more details.

- B. Additional Service Delivery Standards:** Level I and Level II providers must adhere to generally accepted clinical guidelines for psychological treatment of persons with HIV/AIDS-related illnesses. (Please refer to Section III of this FY 2024 Service Delivery Manual for details, as may be amended.)

C. Rules for Reimbursement: Reimbursement for individual and group Mental Health Services will be based on a half-hour counseling session “unit” not to exceed \$32.50 per unit for Level I individual counseling; \$35.00 per unit for Level I group counseling; \$32.50 per unit for Level II individual counseling; and \$35.00 per unit for Level II group counseling. Reimbursement for individual counseling units are calculated for each client receiving the therapy (i.e., number of individual counseling units per client), whereas, reimbursement for group counseling units are calculated for the counselor that provided the group counseling (i.e., number of group counseling units per counselor).

Tele-mental health services are reimbursed as follows:

Billing Code	Description	Flat rate Reimbursement
THMHT1	Tele-Mental Health provided by a Level I provider (individual client only)	\$32.50 per 30-minute session
THMHT2	Tele-Mental Health provided by a Level II provider (individual client only)	\$32.50 per 30-minute session

D. Additional Rules for Reporting: The unit of service for reporting monthly activity of individual and group Mental Health Services is a one-half-hour counseling session and the unduplicated number of clients served. Providers will report individual and group activity separately for Level I and Level II Mental Health Services.

E. Additional Rules for Documentation: Providers must also maintain certifications and licensure documents of the mental health professionals providing services to Ryan White Program clients and must make these documents available to OMB staff or authorized persons upon request. Client charts **must** include a specific mental or behavioral health diagnosis and detailed treatment plan for each eligible client that includes all required components and the mental health professional’s signature and/or the signature of the person supervising the professional.

F. Additional Treatment Guidelines and Standards: Providers of Mental Health Services (Levels I and II) will adhere to generally accepted clinical guidelines for mental health therapy/counseling of people with HIV. The following are examples of such guidelines:

- American Psychiatric Association (APA). HIV Psychiatry - Training and Education, as well as HIV Psychiatry Resources and Publications [e.g., Fact Sheets (Last Updated: 2012): HIV and Clinical Depression; HIV and Anxiety; HIV and Cognitive Disorders; HIV and Delirium; HIV and Substance Use; HIV and People with Severe Mental Illness (SMI); Sleep Disorders and HIV; and Pain in HIV/AIDS; Publications (including links to other related books and journals, such as the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental

Disorders, Fifth Edition, Text Revision-- DSM-5-TR); and additional web-based materials. Available at:

- <https://www.psychiatry.org/psychiatrists/practice/professional-interests/hiv-psychoiatry> <https://www.psychiatry.org/psychiatrists/practice/professional-interests/hiv-psychoiatry> and <https://www.psychiatry.org/psychiatrists/search-directories-databases>
Accessed 9/13/2023.
- American Psychiatric Association. Latest Published and Legacy APA Clinical Practice Guidelines; including, but not limited to, The American Psychiatric Association Practice Guidelines for the Psychiatric Evaluation of Adults, Third Edition, 2015. Available at:
<https://www.psychiatry.org/psychiatrists/practice/clinical-practice-guidelines>
and <https://psychiatryonline.org/guidelines>
Accessed 11/13/2023.